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To All Holders of above referenced Request for Proposals (“RFP”) and the Attachments to it: 
 
Your attention is directed to the following interpretations of, changes in, and/or additions to the Request 
for Proposals for the above-referenced RFP.   All proposal adjustments caused by the content of the 
Addendum shall include the cost of materials and labor related to the items herein and for any subsequent 
adjustments to the RFP and the attachments thereto to accommodate the work stated herein. 
 
This Addendum is part of the RFP in accordance with the provisions of RFP Section 1.15, Amendments 
and Addenda. Respondents shall be responsible for the full context of changes, interpretations, and 
clarifications to the RFP and shall take the same into consideration when preparing their proposal. This 
Addendum shall also be part of any contract awarded as a result of the RFP.  
 
No allowance will be made for Respondents that submit a proposal that is not in compliance with the RFP 
requirements due to the Respondents’ failure to address changes to the RFP made by this Addendum. 
 
This addendum consists of 8 pages and 2 attachments. 
 
 

Question Syracuse Regional Airport Authority Response 
1. Does the Authority want submissions 
annually? Is there a particular form? 

Section 2.3 of the RFP references the Parking 
Manager's monthly reporting requirements. The 
Authority has attached a form with this Addendum.   

2. Is the proposed fee for service 
reimbursable?  

See Section 2.3.   

3. Would Shuttles from the Overflow Lot 
be reimbursed? Does the Airport provide the 
shuttle vehicle? 

Level 3a Service references valet parking and 
shuttle services. A Parking Manager may include in 
its bid a fee for shuttle service from the overflow 
lot. Shuttle service is not required to run every day 
during the year, and the bidder may tailor its shuttle 
service and fee to meet the demands of the 
Authority and its passengers. The Authority does 
not, and will not, supply a shuttle vehicle.  

4. Could there be a clause in the contract 
that if a contract was terminated without cause, 
the bidder would be reimbursed for 

Reimbursement is something that may be 
negotiated during final contract formation.  



investments?  
5. Are you requiring ACDBE goals? No. 
6. Can MBE/WBE goals be met by use of a 
Joint Venture rather than by use of 
Subcontractors and Suppliers? 

The Authority cannot provide legal advice 
regarding a bidders compliance with MBE/WBE 
statutes and regulations other than to state that a 
bidders compliance with those rules/regulations 
will satisfy the requirements under the RFP.  
Guidance should be obtained from legal counsel for 
interested bidders or New York  Empire State 
Development, Division of MWBD  
Albany, NY 12245  
(518) 292-5250 
 
633 Third Avenue, 33rd Floor 
New York, NY 10017  
(212) 803-2414 
http://esd.ny.gov/MWBE.html 
 

7. Appendix B2: M/WBE Utilization Plan: 
Please clarify what the goal calculations of 
MBE/19.060% and WBE 17.044% should be 
percentages of. 

The percentages reflect a total percentage of the 
value of the contract. See Section 3.1 in the Parking 
Management RFP. 

8. Should the bidder's quote include all 
expenses, including daily operation expenses 
such as snow removal? 

Yes. 

9. Is a proposal bond acceptable in lieu of a 
letter of credit? What amount does the 
Authority  require? 

A “Performance” Bond issued by a surety 
acceptable to the Authority and in an appropriate 
amount can be substituted for an LC. The amount 
must be $1,500,000. 

10. Will there be any extensions to the 5 
year contract term? 

No.   

11. Will bid/proposal sheet include the 
option to change/increase the Parking 
Management Fees during each of the five (5) 
years of term? 

Fee increases may be included with the Bidder's 
Parking Management Fee.  

12. Does the Parking Management Service 
responsible for, and have to insure, the Car 
Rental Ready Spaces? (RFP Section 2.2) 

The Parking Management Company insures itself, 
not the specific facility or number of spaces.  

13. Does the Parking Management Service 
have to insure the Employee Lot parking 
spaces? (Section 2.2) 

The Parking Management Company insures itself, 
not the specific facility or number of spaces. 

14. Who manages Employee Lot parking 
access and programs the access to entry/exit 
lane equipment?  

The Parking Manager should provide Access 
Equipment, but the Authority currently, and wishes 
to continue, issuing Employee Lot Access Cards.  

15. How does a customer qualify for a paid 
parking space in the employee parking lot? 
What is the fee and how is it collected?  

At the current time, all paid parking is acquired 
through the Parking Management Company. The 
Authority will notify the Parking Manager who is 
eligible to acquire parking at the Airport.  

16. Please provide the previous and current 
FY revenue and expenses management fees, by 

The requested information is attached to this 
addendum.   



month.   
17. Where do we submit our fee? Do we 
submit a narrative of that fee? 

Section 2.3 of the RFP references the Parking 
Manager's monthly reporting requirements. The 
reporting form is attached to this Addendum. 

18. Who is responsible for snow removal? The Parking Manager is responsible for removing 
snow from the parking lots.  

19. Please provide a detailed equipment 
inventory of the current Revenue Control 
Systems (PARCS) system.  

The Authority does not own the PARCS System at 
this time. The current Parking Management 
Company owns and maintains it, however, a 
number of kiosks and arms will become Authority 
property after the current Parking Manager's 
contract expires.  
 
Presently, the equipment inventory of the PARCS 
is:  
 
12 entry/exit columns 
15 barriers 
4 servers 
2 fee computers.  

20. Tell us what you like and dislike about 
your current Parking Access Revenue Control 
System (PARCS)? What improvements would 
you like in a future PARCS project? 

See RFP Section 2.3(3b) for levels of service. 

21. Who is your current PARCS vendor for 
maintenance? What is the current yearly 
budget?  

Syracuse Time and Alarm. The Authority does not 
have access to budget information.  

22. Will we need to maintain the E-ZPASS 
Plus PARCS integration in the new PARCS 
project going forward?  

Yes.  

23. Where do the E-ZPASS Plus funds 
deposit? Operator, Airport Authority, or New 
York State? If New York State, how often is 
reconciliation?  

E-ZPass funds are deposited with the Authority.  

24. Who manages E-ZPASS Plus access for 
each transponder within the Airport PARCS? 

The Parking Management Company.  

25. Will the Authority accept a proposal 
that has a management fee proposal for the time 
prior to the installation of a new Parking Access 
& Revenue Control System (PARCS) and a 
modified management fee following the 
installation of a new PARCS? 

The Authority will accept a proposal of an initial 
fee prior to the replacement of parts, and a 
modified fee that would take effect after the 
installation of a new system.  

26. What are the credit card reconciliation 
cost for the E-ZPass Plus?  

Reconciliation costs are paid directly by the 
Authority and do not need to be included with 
your proposals.   

27. Do I need to register with the Authority 
to perform an on-site lane and equipment 
inspection? 

Yes.  

28. What is the current license plate 
inventory equipment? How often is vehicle 

The Authority is uncertain of the frequency and 
equipment used to perform a license plate 



inventory performed? inventory. The Authority requires proposals that 
perform license plate inventories at least daily. See 
the Monthly Reporting Form attached to this 
Addendum.  
 

29. Will the Authority provide maintenance 
equipment? 

The Authority will not provide maintenance 
equipment.  

30. Define the Authority's and Parking 
Manager's maintenance responsibilities, and the 
physical boundaries to be maintained.  

The Parking Manager is responsible for the parking 
lots and maintenance responsibilities defined in 
Appendix C1 and C2.  

31. Does snow have to be dumped from the 
roof of the Parking Garage? If so, where is the 
snow dumped? How often is it dumped? Who 
pays for hauling the dumped snow to be hauled 
away? 

Yes. On the snow removal pad. As often as 
necessary. The Parking Manager.  

32. Does the Authority salt and plow the 
sidewalks? 

The Authority is responsible for salting and 
plowing the sidewalks, but the Parking Manager is 
responsible for snow removal from the parking lots 
and roof of the Parking Garage. Snow Removal 
contracts must be approved by the Authority.  

33. Does the Authority maintain the 
landscaping? 

Yes. The Authority will maintain the landscaping 
areas surrounding the parking areas.  

34. Do all subcontractors have to be paid the 
prevailing wage?  

See Section 3.2 of the RFP regarding the City of 
Syracuse Living Wage Ordinance.  

35. Are the employees unionized? If 
unionized, is the living wage currently 
acceptable?  

Current parking employees are members of SEIU 
Local 200. See Section 3.2 of the RFP regarding 
the City of Syracuse Living Wage Ordinance.     

36. Please supply the current contract 
between SP+ (Central Parking) and the Airport 
Authority 

The Authority will not provide the current contract 
as an addendum to this RFP.  

37. Please provide the employee staffing 
schedule for the past 6 months 

The Authority does not have access to this 
information.  

38. Please provide the current (or required) 
staffing schedule by position and the hourly 
wage rates for each position. 

The Authority does not have access to this 
information. 

39. Please supply the garage and lot 
maintenance logs for the last 12 months?  

The Authority does not have access to this 
information. 

40. Please provide the number of 
enplanements for the airport for the years 2012, 
2013 and 2014 

Enplanements for 2012-2014 are: 
2012: 995,327 
2013: 1,011,224 
2014: 753,901 (January-September 2014)  

41. Is this a true management agreement 
where all expenses of the airport parking 
management operation are reimbursed? If not, 
please explain your philosophy.  

See Section 2.3 of the RFP.  
  

42. On Page 2, under Minimum 
Qualification, bullet two it reads " It must have 
managed through its subtenants or directly 
operated at least one parking garage or unit at 
an airport for at least the last two years. " Can 
you please define the word unit.  

The Authority's intent is for any bidder to have at 
least two years experience managing parking 
operations at an airport. A unit could mean 
anything so long as the operation could be 
considered parking management at an airport.  



43. You are asking for one garage or unit on 
Page 2 as a Minimum Qualification, however, in 
the reference sections you ask for three airports. 
May we provide you two parking operations in 
addition to one3 airport unit to satisfy the 
reference section?  

The Authority will accept non-airport references 
for at no more than two of three references.  

44. Is the yearly engineering, and bi-annual 
pavement sealing, a reimbursable expense? 

No.  

45. What customer service feature or 
retention services are currently in place for 
Airport parkers?  

The Authority is interested in proposals that 
upgrade the limited customer service features and 
retention services currently in place at the Airport.    

46. Are the number of Pay On Foot (POF) 
Stations adequate? Do you require cash and 
credit card; or would you be open to a credit 
card only POF?  

The Authority believes the number of POF Stations 
are adequate. The Authority is open to proposals 
containing Credit Cart only POF's, as long as 
parking customers can pay cash when exiting the 
Airport.  

47. The Overflow Lot is currently Credit 
Card In/ Credit Card Out – Will this remain the 
function going forward? Would other Frequent 
Parker payment methods be considered?  

The Authority is open to proposals containing other 
payment methods.  

48. Will the selected Parking Management 
firm be the “merchant of record” for credit card 
transactions? 
49. Are credit card fees considered an 
“operating cost” or as a revenue adjustment? 
50. Has the current PARCS been certified as 
being PCI compliant? 

The Parking Manager will be the merchant of 
record for credit card transactions.  
The Authority considers credit card transaction fees 
an operating expense.  
The Authority does not have access to the 
information required to answer.  

51. Is there any construction work 
budgeted/planned for parking lot layouts, curb 
restructuring, lighting, fiber optic installation, 
exit plaza in 2015 and beyond? Is there a next 
phase in the garage rehabilitation program? If 
so, what and when?  

The Authority plans to upgrade the lighting in the 
Parking Garage in 2015.  
The Authority plans to initiate a second phase of 
renovations to the Parking Garage, however, 
specific dates have not been finalized.  

52. Is there a Parking Security Camera 
Network? How many cameras are there? Is the 
Parking Manager responsible for the 
maintenance and operation?  

The Parking Manager will not have any 
responsibility for a Parking Security Camera 
Network.  

53. Do you charge the hourly rate for the 
first 24 hours and then charge the full daily 
maximum as soon as the customer goes past the 
24 hours; or do you charge the hourly 
increments?  

The Authority currently charges hourly up until the 
first 6 hours, then charges a daily rate. After the 
first 24 hours, the customer is billed hourly for the 
next 6 hours. The Authority reserves the right to 
change the pricing in the future.  

54. Are the management fee and the 
applicable state and local taxes deducted prior 
to remitting the gross receipts to the Airport 
Authority?  

Applicable State and Local taxes are deducted prior 
to remitting Gross Receipts. The Management Fee 
is not.  

55. Is the plumbing system clear and 
operational?  

The Authority believes so.  

56. What is the square footage of the Open 
Lot, Employee Lot and the Overflow Lot?  

Please review Appendix C1 as well as Section 2.2 
of the RFP.  

57. What is the current annual cost of The Authority will not bill the Parking Manager for 



Water, Gas and Electric utilities?  utilities except for sanitation and refuse.  
58. Do you have a CNG filling station at the 
Airport?  

No. 

59. Page 21 of RFP: Section 6.3 “proposal 
selection & award criteria” references Section 
5.4 on pages 18-19 of the RFP: “Staffing, 
Customer Service and Business Plan, Section 5.4 
is worth 20 points”; however, on pages 18-19, 
the sub-sections are numbered from 5.2 straight 
to 5.5. Were there Sections 5.3 and 5.4 which 
were omitted? 

The Authority intended for Section 6.3's Staffing, 
Customer Service, and Business Plan evaluation 
criteria to reference Section 5.2(6), and omit the 
Staffing Plan and Business Plan.  

60. Page 9 RFP, Section 2.2: Is the parking 
operator responsible for the 425 ready return 
spaces leased directly by the Authority to the car 
rental companies? 

No. The Car Rental Companies are responsible for 
striping, signage, and maintenance.  

61. Page 11 RFP, Section 2.3: Please clarify 
the type of Management Fee structure desired 
by the Authority. Is this a cost plus management 
fee reimbursement structure, or a cost 
allowance structure? If cost allowance, please 
clearly define the terms. 

The Authority is seeking a flat management fee, 
which should include all costs.  

62. Page 11 RFP, Section 2.3, Section 4: 
Please define exactly what the “fee” will consist 
of? 

The Authority is seeking a flat management fee, 
including all costs, as defined in Section 2.3 of the 
RFP.  

63. Page 13, Administrative Fees: Please 
provide the Administrative Fees assessed the 
current operator in the last three years. 

The Authority will not provide this information as 
an addendum to this RFP. 

64. Please provide annual gross revenues 
and revenues net of applicable sales taxes for the 
last three years. 

The requested information is attached to this 
addendum.  

65. Please provide annual operating 
expenses for the last three years. 

The Authority does not have access to this 
information.  

66. Please identify any vehicles and/or 
sweeper/scrubber equipment which will be 
available to the parking operator and whether 
the parking operator is required to purchase 
these. 

The Parking Manager is required to make 
arrangements to maintain all parking lots.  

67. Is the revenue for the 425 ready return 
spaces leased directly by the Authority to the car 
rental companies included in the “Gross 
Parking Fees” of the airport? 

The Authority has an agreement with the Car 
Rental Companies and the revenue derived from 
the Ready Return spaces are not included in the 
Parking Management's operation or fee.  

68. Is the parking operator required to pay 
parking revenue based taxes for funds paid 
directly to the Authority for the use of the 425 
ready return parking spaces? 

No.  

69. Please clarify if the Authority is 
requiring the bidders to submit a single 
management fee offer for all levels of service or 
a progressive management fee for the increasing 
level of service desired -- May a bidder submit a 
proposal for only one of the levels service? May 

A bidder may submit a fee proportionate to the 
service provided to the Airport. A bidder is not 
required to submit a proposal for every level of 
service specified.  



the bidder submit a management fee offer for 
some , but not all levels of service specified?  
70. Section 17 of the RFP indicates that a 
listing of any M/WBE firms that have expressed 
a specific interest in this opportunity will be 
posted to the Authority's website.  Please specify 
where on the website the listing will be posted.  

Bidders may find M/WBE vendors compiled at the 
following websites:  
https://ny.newnycontracts.com/FrontEnd/ 
VendorSearchPublic.asp 
http://www.esd.ny.gov 
/MWBE/directorySearch.html 
 
 

71. M/WBE Subcontractors and Suppliers 
Notice of Intent to Participate, provides for 
qualification of proposed M/WBE participants 
who have applied for, but not yet received, 
certification from New York State's Division of 
Minority and Woman-Owned Business 
Development.  Please confirm that proposers 
may include participation by such M/WBEs 
towards M/WBE goals and indicate any 
supporting documentation that may be 
required. 

The Authority cannot provide legal advice 
regarding compliance with MBE/WBE statutes and 
regulations other than to state that a bidders 
compliance with those rules/regulations will satisfy 
the requirements under the RFP.  Guidance should 
be obtained from legal counsel for interested 
bidders or New York  Empire State Development, 
Division of MWBD  
Albany, NY 12245  
(518) 292-5250 
 
633 Third Avenue, 33rd Floor 
New York, NY 10017  
(212) 803-2414 
http://esd.ny.gov/MWBE.html 
 

72. Since we are not a Minority or Women 
owned Business, which of the appendices are 
required for us to complete and submit in order 
to be compliant? 

Appendix B-4 contains the Waiver for M/WBE.  

73. The RFP requests a copy of our proposal 
on a CD.  Would a flash drive also be 
acceptable? 

Yes. 

74. If a company chooses to bid on Level 3b, 
should they also propose/include separate 
Parking Management Fees for Level 1, Level 2 
and Level 3a?  

Yes.  

75. Level 3a combines valet parking and 
shuttle service – can the Authority choose one 
without the other. If so, should Proposers 
include a separate fee for each? 

Yes to both questions.  

76. For development of costs for Level 3a, 
should Proposers assume all cost for providing 
valet parking and shuttle service will be borne 
by the Operator, including the 
purchase/installation of a new curbside Valet 
Office/Booth? 

Yes.  

77. For Level 3a, shuttle service, does the 
Authority have any requirements regarding the 
type of equipment to be provided? Are buses 
required to be new? ADA equipped? Walk-

The Authority does not have specific vehicle 
requirements, other than any equipment used at the 
Airport must meet ADA requirements.  



in/cut-away shuttle buses vs. vans?  
78. Is it the Authority’s expectation that the 
proposed shuttle service would operate 24/7? 

No, the Authority expects the respondents to 
propose specific hours that the Parking Manager 
intends to operate a shuttle service.  

79. Does the Authority intend to conduct 
oral interviews prior to the final selection? 

See Section 6.1 of the RFP. Section 6.1 says the 
RFP committee may request additional information 
from respondents, which may include an oral 
interview.  

 
The remainder of the above referenced Requests for Proposals shall remain unchanged and 
shall continue in full force and effect.  
 



2008/2009 2009/2010 2010/2011 2011/2012 2012/2013 2013/2014
Parking( (net-revenue) Parking( (net-revenue) Parking( (net-revenue) Parking( (net-revenue) Parking( (net-revenue) Parking( (net-revenue)

Jul408 669,521.83$-------------------------------------- Jul409 631,263.32$---------- Jul410 705,241.99$---------- Jul411 723,368.84$---------- Jul412 748,653.61$------- Jul413 678,850$------------
Aug408 716,806.17$-------------------------------------- Aug409 626,849.36$---------- Aug410 739,610.79$---------- Aug411 721,796.90$---------- Aug412 757,122.09$------- Aug413 771,425$------------
Sep408 678,068.44$-------------------------------------- Sep409 603,376.34$---------- Sep410 779,619.17$---------- Sep411 709,321.90$---------- Sep412 715,926.86$------- Sep413 649,798$------------
Oct408 779,429.24$-------------------------------------- Oct409 700,578.15$---------- Oct410 909,236.11$---------- Oct411 805,414.49$---------- Oct412 835,925.14$------- Oct413 848,767$------------
Nov408 696,544.19$-------------------------------------- Nov409 661,746.71$---------- Nov410 831,473.75$---------- Nov411 802,770.97$---------- Nov412 809,526.99$------- Nov413 771,194$------------
Dec408 639,554.94$-------------------------------------- Dec409 584,667.18$---------- Dec410 711,386.40$---------- Dec411 679,026.06$---------- Dec412 691,127.92$------- Dec413 743,376$------------
Jan409 733,070.33$-------------------------------------- Jan410 732,613.94$---------- Jan411 841,731.16$---------- Jan412 816,532.22$---------- Jan413 839,276.76$------- Jan414 853,514$------------
Feb409 732,824.29$-------------------------------------- Feb410 715,212.31$---------- Feb411 811,145.51$---------- Feb412 778,633.94$---------- Feb413 822,627.69$------- Feb414 789,737$------------
Mar409 891,634.98$-------------------------------------- Mar410 898,118.06$---------- Mar411 1,020,827.64$------ Mar412 945,974.95$---------- Mar413 993,198.06$------- Mar414 991,116$------------
Apr409 759,506.70$-------------------------------------- Apr410 787,456.00$---------- Apr411 942,962.64$---------- Apr412 924,163.80$---------- Apr413 918,950.14$------- Apr414 910,627$------------
May409 690,600.79$-------------------------------------- May410 741,211.00$---------- May411 844,978.94$---------- May412 847,271.90$---------- May413 826,106.35$------- May414 1,049,165$--------- *
Jun409 633,533.96$-------------------------------------- Jun410 597,964.00$---------- Jun411 709,274.31$---------- Jun412 732,457.73$---------- Jun413 684,878.38$------- Jun414 888,561$------------ *

8,621,095.86$----------------------------------- 8,281,056.37$------ 9,847,488.41$------ 9,486,733.70$------ 9,643,319.99$------ 9,946,130$------
net-revenue=less-sales-tax-and-ezpass-

*reflects-rate-increase



Monthly report to contain, at a minimum, the following information.
Due no later than the 5th business day following the end of the month.

Syracuse Regional Airport Authority
Parking Management Report for the Month of: ______________________________

Day of <-- Cars in Lot -->
Date Week Garage Open Overflow Employee Total

1
2
…

30
31

Totals

Revenue Summary
Violations -$         
Monthly Passes -$         
Ticket Sales -$         
Misc. -$         
Over/Short -$         

  Total Revenue -$         

Adjustments
EZ Pass -$         
Sales Tax -$         

  Total Adjustments -$         

Remit to Airport Authority -$         


